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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QATAR GENERAL
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY S.A.Q.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Qatar General Insurance and
Reinsurance Company S.A.Q. (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014 and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated Jfinancial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as of 31 December 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QATAR GENERAL
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY S.A.Q. (CONTINUED)

Report on Legal and Other Regulatory Matters

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Group and the consolidated
financial statements comply with the Qatar Commercial Companies' Law No. 5 of 2002 and the
Company's Articles of Association. We have obtained all the information and explanations we required
for the purpose of our audit, and are not aware of any violations of the above mentioned law or the
Articles of Association having occurred during the year which might have had a material effect on the
business of the Group or on its financial position.

/7

/ Zilad Nader
/ ¢f Emst & Young
/' [Auditor's Registration No. 258

‘_.‘: Date: 5 February 2015
' Doha




Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes QR '000 QR ‘000
Assets
Property and equipment # 70,220 63,626
Investment properties 5 5,005,196 4,277,199
Equity accounted investees 6 370,711 392,366
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets 7(a) 1,176,331 1,023,184
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7(b) 199,396 171,623
Receivables from related parties 7(c) 804 9,141
Insurance receivables 7(d) 198,331 228,843
Reinsurance assets 8 545,776 483,770
Takaful participants' assets 9(a) 298,464 205,119
Other assets 10 186,882 105,938
Cash and cash equivalents 11 501,627 151,083
Total assets 8,553,738 7,111,892
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Issued share capital 12 691,753 576,461
Retained earnings ‘ 3,844,630 3,224,192
Legal reserve 13 440,499 348,497
Revaluation reserves 14 698,919 628,433
' 5,675,801 4,777,583
Non-controlling interests 17 2,114 1,847
Total equity 5,677,915 4,779,430
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 18 769,321 688,322
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 19 1,303,680 982,994
Derivative financial instruments 20 34,853 39,129
Payables to related parties 21 3,360 53
Insurance payables . 22 272,445 295,653
Employees' end-of-service benefits 23 27,584 28,908
Takaful participants' liabilities 9(a) 298,464 205,119
Other liabilities 24 166,116 92,284
Total liabilities 2,875,823 2,332,462
Total equity and liabilities 8,553,738 7,111,892
g e %
— R
Nasser Bin Ali Bin Saud Al Thani Jamal Kamel Abu Nahl
Chairman and Managing Director Chief Executive Officer and Board Member

The attached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes QR '000 QR '000
Gross premiums 26(a) 616,454 560,255
Change in unearned premiums provision 26(a) (56,053) (42,103)
Gross earned premiums 26(a) 560,401 518,152
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 26(b) (362,396) (312,163)
Net earned premiums 198,005 205,989
Fees and commission income 27 17,926 15,562
Investment income 28 192,450 70,201
Net realised gains 29 64,981 22,280
Fair value gains 30 724,273 2,039,284
Other operating revenue 31 14,364 12,182
Other revenue 1,013,994 2,159,509
Total revenue 1,211,999 2,365,498
Gross claims paid 32(a) (206,019) (231,249)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 32(b) 87,989 105,999
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities 32(c) (24,946) (23,152)
Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers 32(d) (1,304) 7,265
Net claims (144,280) (141,137)
Finance costs 33 (39,868) (16,886)
Other operating and administrative expenses 34 (126,715) (101,136)
Other expenses (166,583) (118,022)
Total expenses (310,863) (259,159)
Profit before share of profits of associates 901,136 2,106,339
Share of profits of associates 6 18,887 24,646
Profit for the year 920,023 2,130,985
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent 919,756 2,130,433
Non-controlling interests 267 552
920,023 2,130,985
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Parent (in Qatari Riyals per share) 35 13.30 30.80

The attached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Profit for the year 920,023 2,130,985
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 6 (36,352) (20,600)
Net gain on cash flow hedging 4,276 11,900
Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets 102,562 130,570
Other comprehensive income for the year 70,486 121,870
Total comprehensive income for the year 990,509 2,252,855
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent 990,242 2,252,303
Non-controlling interests 267 552
990,509 2,252,855

The attached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

5



"SJUOUId)E)S [BIOUBULJ PAJEPI[OSU0d dsay) JO ed W0 ¢f 0} | S9I0U paydene oy [,

SI6°LLYS PITT 108°SLY‘S (#69°€8) (€S8°¥€) SSE°LL TII°0bL 66¥°0F¥ 0€9°vH8°E €SL169 $10T 1quIdd(Q €IV
(sss°s) - (ssS°S) - - - - - (sss‘s) - 9] puny san1anoe syods pue
[e100s 0} UONNQLIIUOD)

(69+°98) - (69+°98) - - - - - (69+°98) - S1 Ieak oy
Suumnp pred spuopiaiq

- - - - - - - 200°76 (200°26) - €1 9AI0SQI [250] 0} JoFsuLI],
- - - - - - - - @6T'stn) T6T'SIT 4! 124 oy Sunmp

ponssI sa1eys snuog

605066 L9T w066 (zs€‘9¢) LT - 795201 - 9SL°616 - swoout
aarsuoyarduos 1ejo,

98+ 0L - 98+°0L (zs€'9¢) 9ILT'Y - 795701 - - - swoout
aAIsuayaIdwod 10yO

€20°026 L9T 9SL°616 - - - - - 9SL°616 - 183K 9y 10§ 3§0Id

0EH6LLY LYST €8SLLLY @reLy) (671°6€) SSE°LL 6VS‘LEY L6V ‘8YE 61PITE 19v°9LS ¥10T Arenuef | 3y

000, YO 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, YO 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, A0 SJON

Aymba $)S3.19)ul £ynba AIISAI Suigpay snjdans $)asse AIISAL sguruwIed rended

e1oL Surjonuod JSJIIproyaaeys uonesue.n) MO[J yse) uonen[eAy] [endueUly €891 paure)dy dreys

-UoN Areurpao Adudrnd J[es-10j panss|
| LALA ugnIoy =d[qereAy

SIAIISAI UoneNeAdY

JudaRd Y} Jo saapoy A3mba 03 sjqeInqre Kby

10T 39quda( [ € PAPUL I8 X Y3 10,]
ALINOA NI SIONVHD 40 INFWALVLS A4LVAITOSNOD

'O'V'S Auedwio) 20uBINSUISY PUB S0ULINSU] [BISUAL) TeIe()




"SJUOUId)E)S [BIOUBUL) PAJEPI[OSU0d dsay) JO ed W0 ¢f 0} | S9I0U paydene oy [,

0SV'6LLY LY8°1 €8S LLLY (¢ve'Ly) (6T1°6€) SSE'LL 6vS°LEY L6V 8¥€ 61YTTE 19%°9LS €107 1quiad( ¢ IV
(€L¥D) - (€L¥°1) - - - - - (€L¥'1) - 91 puny sanIAnoe spods pue
[e100S 0} UOHNQLIIUO))

(Lz1°08) - (Lz1'09) - - - - - (Lz1°08) - Sl 183k oy
Suwump pred spuopiAlq

- - - - - - - 860°€1C (860°€10) - ¢l 9AIOSAI [EZ0] 0} JOJSUEL],
- - - - - - - - (161°5) 161°SL ! Ieak oty Sutinp

panssI sa1eys snuog

$$8TSTT Tss £0€°TSTT (009°02) 00611 - 0LS0€1 - €EP0EIT - awoout
aarsuayarduod 1ejo,

0L8°TTT - 0L8°TCT (009°02) 006°TT - 0LS0€T - - - awroout
9AIsuayaIdWod YO

$86°0€1°C 499 CEY0EIT - - - - - €EV0ETT - Teak oty 10§ JjoId

SLI'8LST S6T°1 088°9L5°C (¢rL97) (620°1S) SSE°LL 6L6°90S 66€°S€E1 8Y9°CEY’l 0LT10S €10T Arenuef |3y

000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O 000, 4O SAJON

Kynbo $)SQI)UL Aynba QAIQSAI Suidpay snjdins $)asse JAIQSAI sgurured rendeo

Telol, Surjonuoo SIopoyareys uone[suen MOTJ yse) uoneneAdy Jeroueury 1391 paureloy aIeys

-UON ATeurpio [ejo], Kouarmd J[es-I10J. panssy
ugra104 -9[qe[reAy

SOAIOSAI UOIEN[BASY

juared dy jo siopjoy Ainba 0y sjqeinqgrye Aynbg

10T 19quida( [ € PAPUF JeX Y3 10,]
(@ANNILNOD) ALINOA NI SHONVHD 40 INFNALV.LS A4LVAI'TOSNOD

'O'V'S Auedwio) 20uBINSUISY PUB S0ULINSU] [BISUAL) TeIe()



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

Operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustment for:

Net change in operating assets
Net change in operating liabilities

Non-cash items included in profit for the year
Fair value gains

Impairment losses (recoveries)

Share of profits of associates

Gain from sale of property and equipment
Gain from sale of equity accounted investees
Gain from sale of investment properties
Depreciation of property and equipment
Employees' end-of-service benefits

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from sale of investment properties

Investments in equity accounted investees
Proceeds from sale of equity accounted investees

Dividends received from equity accounted investees
Net change in available-for-sale financial assets

Net change in financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Movement on bank loans

Finance costs paid on bank loans

Dividends paid to equity holders of the Parent
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Operational cash flows from interest and dividends
Interest paid

Interest received

Dividend received

The attached notes 1 to 43 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

2014 2013
Notes QR '000 QR '000
920,023 2,130,985

36 (104,484) 5,538
36 129,374 103,880
30 (724,273) (2,039,284)
34 382 (7,367)
6 (18,887) (24,646)
(12) -

29 (5,210) -
29 (29,275) -
34 4,632 4,614
(1,324) 2,033

170,946 175,753

4 (11,238) (7,607)
24 -

5 (62,004) (96,745)
61,089 -

6 (12,785) (11,668)
5,255 -

6 17,038 10,867
(50,691) (14,159)

(1,307) (2,339)

(54,619) (121,651)

357,159 123,063

33 (38,126) (14,618)
15 (86,469) (50,127)
232,564 58,318

348,891 112,420

154,676 42,256

11 503,567 154,676
33 38,367 14,927
11,739 12,808

44,163 45513
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q. (the “Company” or the “Parent Company”) is a public
shareholding company incorporated by Emiri Decree No. 52 of 1978 under commercial registry number 7200 and
governed by the provisions of the Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law No. 5 of 2002. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in the business of general insurance and reinsurance
including Islamic Takaful insurance, real estate and investment management. The shares of the Company are
listed on the Qatar Exchange.

The Company has seven local branches in Qatar and one overseas branch in United Arab Emirates (in Dubai).
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
the Group’s interest in the associates. The subsidiaries are:

Name of the subsidiary Ownership . Country (.)f Principal activities
incorporation

Qatar General Holding Company o Primarily engaged in managing

S.P.C. 100% State of Qatar investments of the Group.

General Takaful Company S.P.C. 100% State of Qatar Prlmarlly engaged in Islamic
insurance.

General Real Estate Company 100% State of Qatar Prlmarlly engaged in real estate

S.P.C. investment and management.
Official recognized licensee of the

— 0,

World Trade Center — Qatar S.P.C. 100% State of Qatar World Trade Center Association.

g/gx?coez Isni)urcance Marketing 100% State of Qatar Insurance marketing services.

Mozoon Real Estate Company 0 Real estate investment and

W.L.L. >0% State of Qatar development.

General Company for Water and 0 Water bottling and foodstuff

Beverages W.L.L. 60% State of Qatar trading.

General Tower for Real Estate o Real estate investment and

Investments S.P.C. 100% State of Qatar development.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors on 5 February 2015.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1  Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and applicable provisions of the Qatar Commercial Companies' Law No. 5 of 2002.

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following
material items in the consolidated statement of financial position which are carried at fair value:

- derivative financial instruments;

- non derivative financial instruments carried at fair value through profit or loss;
- available-for-sale financial assets;

- investment properties.

The methods used to measure fair values are disclosed in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyal (QR), which is the Group’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in Qatari Riyal has been rounded to the nearest thousands (QR '000)
except where otherwise indicated.




Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Information about significant areas of estimates and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are included under
Note 41 and 42.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised.

2.3  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following
amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2014:

Standard Content
IFRS 10, IFRS 12, IAS 27 | Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32
IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting -
Amendments to IAS 39
IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets - Amendments to IAS 36
IFRIC 21 IFRIC 21 Levies

The nature and the impact of each new standard or amendment is described below:

Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of
an investment entity under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The exception to consolidation requires
investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These amendments have no
impact on the Group.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and the criteria for
non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These amendments have no
impact on the Group.

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting - Amendments to IAS 39

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated
as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments have no impact on the Group as the Group has
not novated its derivatives during the current or prior years.

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets - Amendments to IAS 36

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement on the disclosures
required under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which an impairment loss has been recognised or
reversed during the year. These disclosures have no impact on the Group.

10



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 is applicable to all levies other than outflows that are within the scope of other standards (e.g., IAS 12)
and fines or other penalties for breaches of legislation. The interpretation clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. It also
clarifies that a levy liability is accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period
of time, in accordance with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability is recognized before the specified minimum threshold is
reached. These amendments have no impact on the Group.

2.4  Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
are listed below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to
have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date. The Group intends
to adopt these standards when they become effective.

The Group is currently considering the implications of the new IFRSs which are effective for future accounting
periods and has not early adopted any of the new Standards as listed below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement
impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not
compulsory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of
initial application is before 1 February 2015. The adoption of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial liabilities.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue
applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first-
timeadoption of IFRS. Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line
items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line
items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on the
nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its
financial statements. IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined
benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should be attributed to periods of service as a
negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. These amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group as none of the entities within the Group participate in defined benefit plans
with contributions from employees or third parties.

11



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Annual Improvements

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.
They include:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of performance
and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

- aperformance condition must contain a service condition;

- aperformance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service;

- aperformance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in the
same group;

- aperformance condition may be a market or non-market condition; and

- if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that all contingent consideration arrangements classified as
liabilities (or assets) arising from a business combination should be subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss whether or not they fall within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable).

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that an entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8, including a brief description of
operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins)
used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’. The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only
required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the
required disclosure for segment liabilities.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — IAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by
reference to observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated
depreciation or amortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an entity
that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.
They include:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies for the scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that joint
arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3. This scope exception applies only to the
accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39,
as applicable).

12



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Annual Improvements (continued)

IAS 40 Investment Property
The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied
property (i.e., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3,
and not the description of ancillary services in IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an
asset or business combination.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles
in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard
is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a
full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with
early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact that this standard would have on its
financial position and performance.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant IFRS 3
principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the
same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition of bearer
plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no longer be within
the scope of IAS 41. Instead, IAS 16 will apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under
IAS 16 at accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after
maturity). The amendments also require produce that grow on bearer plants will remain in the scope of IAS 41
measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants, IAS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance will apply. The amendments are retrospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Annual Improvements (continued)

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already applying IFRS and electing to
change to the equity method in its separate financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively.

For first-time adopters of IFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be
required to apply this method from the date of transition to IFRS. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied by the Group consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-
group balances, transactions, recognized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

- derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

- derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- recognises the fair value of the consideration received,

- recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

- reclassifies the Parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Investment in subsidiary companies
Subsidiaries are defined as companies that are controlled by the Group, namely companies in which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Qatar General Insurance and
Reinsurance Company S.A.Q and its subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2014. The financial statements of
the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company, using consistent
accounting policies.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Investment in subsidiary companies (continued)

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, General Takaful Company S.P.C, is an operator of Islamic insurance business
operating under Islamic Shari’a principles. In accordance with applicable Shari’a principles, participants’
(policyholders’) funds are maintained seperately from the operator’s (shareholders’) funds. Accordingly, the
participants’ assets and liabilities including the fund balances are shown separately as ‘Takaful participants’
assets’ and ‘Takaful participants’ liabilities’ respectively in the consolidated statement of financial position as
supplementary information. Takaful participants’ fund accounts comprising of statement of financial position and
statement of comprehensive income (policyholders) is set out in Note 9. The Group manages the Takaful funds on
behalf of the policyholders under the Hybrid model.

The Hybrid model uses the principles of both Wakala and Mudaraba, whereby the operator receives a fixed
Wakala fee of 15% (2013: 15%) of gross insurance premiums, in addition to the 70% share in the realised
investment gains on the policyholders’ contributions. The administrative costs of underwriting are covered by the
Wakala fee and borne by the shareholder.

Investment in associate companies

Associate companies are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of total
recognised gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

All subsequent changes to the Group’s share of interest in the equity of the associate are recognised in the
Group’s carrying amount of the investment. Changes resulting from the profit and loss generated by the associate
are reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and therefore affect net results of the Group.

Amounts reported in the financial statements of associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that
interest, including any long term investments, is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Foreign currency

Foreign operations

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of the foreign branch is
expressed in the functional currency of the Parent Company at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during the year in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Investment
in foreign associates is translated at the closing exchange rates. Foreign currency translation differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is disposed of in part or full, the
relevant amount in the reserve is transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the corresponding
period.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in Qatari Riyals at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to Qatari Riyal at the exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to Qatari Riyal at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transactions. The resultant exchange differences are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments represent the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. Financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, insurance and other receivables, receivables from related parties, reinsurance assets and investments.
Financial liabilities include insurance payables, borrowings, derivative financial instruments, insurance contract
liabilities, payables to related parties and other liabilities.

Recognition
The financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date they are generated and on the date at which the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Group derecognises the financial asset when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from that asset expire
or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flow of that asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred.

The Group also derecognizes certain assets when it expenses balances pertaining to assets deemed to be
uncollectible. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group’s investments in equity securities, fund accounts and certain debt securities are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses, and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale monetary items, are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss. All purchases and
sales of investments are recognised at the settlement date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

An instrument is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial instruments are held for trading if the Group manages such investments and makes
purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s investment strategy. Upon
initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less as on the consolidated statement of financial position date. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is objective evidence of that the
asset is impaired.

Reinsurance assets

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for its businesses. Reinsurance assets represent
balances recoverable from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a
manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurers’ policies
and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Measurement (continued)

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, provision for claims incurred but not
reported and the provision for unearned premium.

Amounts payable for insurance claims reported up to the reporting period end and the amount payable to
reinsurance companies are accrued as a provision for outstanding claims. The insurance claims are accrued on the
basis of the actual losses reported against the policies underwritten by the Group during the year.

Provision for claims incurred but not reported are computed based on actuarial review after considering current
assumptions, historical trends and empirical data which is not discounted for the time value of money.

Unearned premiums represent the portion of net premiums written relating to the unexpired period of coverage
calculated on the actual number of days method (daily pro rata basis). The change in the provision for unearned
premium is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the order that revenue is recognised over the
period of risk.

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After the initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when liabilities are
derecognised.

Others
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge its risk associated with interest rate fluctuations relating to
the interest payments on the Group’s term loan. These interest rate swap contracts are stated at fair value. The
Group classifies a hedge as a cash flow hedge where it hedges the exposure to variability in cash flows that are
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a forecasted transaction. The
interest rate swap contract has been classified as a cash flow hedge and meets the conditions for hedge accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each consolidated statement of financial position date. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Cash flow hedging

The effective portion of changes to the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedging are deferred in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment
properties, at fair value at each consolidated financial position date. Fair value related disclosures for financial
instruments and non-financial instruments that are measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are
summarised in the following notes:

- investment properties in Note 5

- available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in Note 7(a) and (b)
- derivative financial instruments in Note 20

- quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy in Note 39

- disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions in Note 42
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
- inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement such as unquoted
available-for-sale financial assets, and for non-recurring measurement.

External valuers are involved in the valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties, and significant
liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Group after discussion with and approval
by the Group’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The Group decides, after discussions with the Group’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The Group, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset
and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the
statement of financial position date. If the fair value cannot be measured reliably using any of the methods
mentioned, then these financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for
the acquisition of the investment or the amount received on issuing the financial liability until a reliable measure
of the fair value is available. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the
cost of the investment (Refer to Note 39 for fair value hierarchy).
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Fair value measurement (continued)

Investment properties

The fair value of an investment property is determined by independent real estate valuation experts with recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The fair values are based on market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein parties had each acted
knowledgeably.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use evidenced by the end of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or completion of construction or
development. For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property
and equipment up to the date of the change in use.

Interest rate swap agreements
The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at the
prevailing interest rate based on broker’s quotes.

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For an investment in equity security
classified under available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost provides
objective evidence of impairment. Reversal of impairment losses in respect of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are treated as increases in fair value through the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Reversal of impairment losses on debt instruments are done through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, when the increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between the carrying value and the present value of future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

Other assets and liabilities
All other assets and liabilities which are financial instruments are stated at cost, being the fair value and
recognized at amounts to be received or to be paid in the future.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business or use in the production or supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes. Investments in property are measured by applying the fair value model.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of
self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other cost directly
attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised
borrowing cost. These properties are constructed for future use as investment properties and hence are considered
as investment properties and accounted at fair value.

Any gain or loss on disposal of any investment property (calculated as a difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its fair value at the date
of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognised net within other income in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if
it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of property and equipment
other than land which is determined to have an indefinite life as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Computers 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 — 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
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Employee benefits

Local employees

With respect to local employees, the Group makes contributions to the government pension fund to the respective
local regulatory authorities as a percentage of the employees’ salaries in accordance with the requirements of
respective local laws pertaining to retirement and pensions, wherever required. The Group’s share of contributions
to these schemes, which are defined contribution schemes under International Accounting Standard (IAS) — 19
Employee Benefits are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Expatriate employees

For the expatriate employees, the Group provides for employees’ end-of-service benefits determined in
accordance with the requirements of respective local laws of Group entities pertaining to retirement and pensions,
wherever required. These unfunded charges are made by the Group on the basis of employees’ salaries and the
number of years of service at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Although the expected costs of
these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, these are paid to employees only on completion of their
term of employment with the Group.

Share capital

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The bonus shares issued during the year are shown as an addition to the
share capital and deducted from the accumulated retained earnings of the Group.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from retained earnings when they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after the consolidated
statement of financial position date are dealt with as an event after the consolidated statement of financial position
date.

Fair value reserve

This represents the unrealised gain or loss on year end fair valuation of available-for-sale financial assets. In the
event of sale or impairment, the cumulative gains or losses recognised under the investments fair value reserve are
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

Income recognition

Gross premiums
Gross premiums comprise total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered
into during the accounting period and are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.

Net earned premiums

Premiums, net of reinsurance, are recognizd in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the terms of the
related contracts or policies. The portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks
at the consolidated statement of financial position date is reported as the unearned premium liability. Unearned
premiums are calculated principally on the actual number of day’s method (daily pro rata basis).

Reinsurance arrangements

As part of managing its insurance risks, the Group enters into contracts with other reinsurers for compensation of
losses on insurance contracts issued by the Group. A proportionate amount of gross premiums, in proportion to
the amount of risk reinsured on an individual policy basis are paid to reinsurance companies according to the rates
agreed in reinsurance contracts, as reinsurance premiums.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group assumes and cedes reinsurance. Such reinsurance arrangements
provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses arising
from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth.
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Income recognition (continued)

Reinsurance arrangements (continued)
A significant portion of reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative and excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts.
Amounts payable to reinsurance companies are accrued on the basis of reinsurance premium payable on an
individual policy basis. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that
relate to periods of risk after the consolidated statement of financial position date and are deferred over the term of
the underlying direct insurance policies.

Net commission income

A proportionate amount of reinsurance premium paid to reinsurance companies is paid back to the Group as
commission for undertaking the business. This commission percentage is agreed according to reinsurance
contracts entered per individual line of business with different reinsurance companies. The amount of commission
is recognised according to the reinsurance commission receivable on an individual policy basis.

Fees

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, management services and other
contract fees. This income is recognised during the period when the policy is underwritten or the service is
provided.

Investment income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the period of the lease. Investment income also includes dividends, which are recognised
when the right to receive the same is established. Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as it accrues.

Income from associate companies is recognised as per the equity accounting method. Changes resulting from the
profit or loss generated by the associates is recognised under the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Claims and related expenses

Gross claims paid

Claims and related expenses are accounted for based on reports received and subsequent review on an individual
case basis. Provision is made to cover the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims arising out of events, which
have occurred by the end of the financial year, including unreported losses, and claims handling expenses.

Provision for unreported claims
Provision for unreported claims is established based on actuarial analysis and application of underwriting
judgment having regard to the range of uncertainty as to the eventual outcome for each category of business.

Reinsurance and other recoveries

Compensations receivable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the corresponding claim
liability. The obligations arising under reinsurance contracts are recognised in income and the related liabilities
are recognised as accounts receivable or deducted from reinsurers’ share of technical reserves. Hence, a portion of
the reinsurance premium payable is provided as a reserve for future claims in order to provide additional liquidity
for the Group, which is finally settled at the end of the reinsurance period.

Movement in outstanding claims

Claims reported but not settled (RBNS)

Provision for outstanding claims is recognized at the date the claims are known and covers the liability for loss
and loss adjustment expenses based on loss reports from independent loss adjusters and management’s best
estimate.
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Claims and related expenses (continued)

Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Claims provision also includes a liability for claims incurred but not reported as at the consolidated statement of
financial position date. An independent actuarial firm is appointed every subsequent year to assess the adequacy
of reserves to meet future outstanding liabilities. The liability is generally calculated at the reporting date, which
is within the range of 13% to 15% of gross claims outstanding, after considering the independent actuarial report,
historic trends, empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviations. The
liability is not discounted for the time value of money.

Reserve for unexpired risks

The reserve for unexpired risk represents the estimated portion of net premium income which relates to periods of
insurance subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial position date. The reserve is calculated using the
actual number of day’s method.

The reinsurers’ share on estimated liability of RBNS, IBNR and unexpired insurance premium is separately
classified as reinsurance assets in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent by the weighted number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to senior management includes items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and head
office expenses.

Finance costs

The finance costs incurred on qualified assets are capitalised being part of cost of construction. All other finance
costs are recognised on an accrual basis in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year in which
they arise.

Events after the reporting period

The consolidated financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the consolidated
statement of financial position date and the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, provided they give evidence of conditions that existed at the consolidated statement of financial position
date. There were no subsequent events which required either adjustments or disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements except for the proposed dividend.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

5 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2014 2013

Note QR '000 QR '000

At 1 January 4,277,199 2,139,173
Additions 62,004 96,745
Disposals (31,814) -
Reclassifications - 39,449
Fair value gains 30 697,807 2,001,832
At 31 December 5,005,196 4,277,199

As at 31 December 2014, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by accredited
independent valuers who are specialists in valuing these types of investment properties. The valuation models used
are in accordance with recommended industry practice.

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to
either purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

The fair value of the investment properties were estimated based on fair valuation techniques and assumptions

with reference to recent sales transactions of similar properties in an active market, as well as, discounted cash
flows valuation techniques with reference to rental income.

6 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

At 1 January 392,366 288,903

Investments in equity accounted investees 12,785 11,668

Sale of share in equity accounted investee 45) -

Increase in investment in equity accounted investee - 98,616

Share of profits of associates 18,887 24,646

Share of other comprehensive income of associates 108 -
Dividends received from equity accounted investees (17,038) (10,867)
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (36,352) (20,600)

At 31 December 370,711 392,366
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

6 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates summarised financial information of the Group’s equity accounted investees:

Share of the associates statement of financial position:
Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Share of the associates revenues and profit:
Revenues

Profit

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Receivables from related parties

Insurance receivables

(a)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity securities
Debt securities
Managed funds

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost amount to QR 2.99 million (2013: QR 2.92 million).

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equity securities

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

334,876 214,047

499,376 592,287

(54,779) (41,828)

(408,762) (372,140)

370,711 392,366

58,005 37,957

18,887 24,646

2014 2013

Notes QR '000 QR '000
(a) 1,176,331 1,023,184
(b) 199,396 171,623
(©) 804 9,141
() 198,331 228,843
1,574,862 1,432,791

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

952,110 835,851

192,422 148,112

31,799 39,221

1,176,331 1,023,184

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

199,396 171,623
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(¢) Receivables from related parties

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd — Amman - 3,798
Gulf Petroleum Limited - 3,571
International Financial Securities 9 7
Others 795 1,765
804 9,141

(d) Insurance receivables
2014 2013
Notes QR '000 QR '000
Due from policyholders 149,070 202,222
Due from insurers and reinsurers * 39,383 16,053
Due from agents, brokers and intermediaries 5,046 4,794
Claims recoveries 4,832 5,774
(e) 198,331 228,843

* Due from insurers and reinsurers includes amounts due from related parties as follows:

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd — Amman* 83 269
Trust Re — Bahrain 91 91
Others 1 1
175 361

* Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd— Amman acts as a reinsurance administrator through whom
transactions are directed to various reinsurance service providers.

(e) Impairment of receivables

As at the reporting date, the aging of unimpaired insurance receivables was as follows:

Neither
past due Past due but not impaired
Total nor impaired <3 months 3 —9 months > 9 months
QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
31 December 2014 198,331 53,593 28,396 54,989 61,353
31 December 2013 228,843 18,454 23,350 78,348 108,691

Unimpaired receivables are expected to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the Group to obtain collateral
over receivables and the vast majority is therefore unsecured.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

® Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within Level 1 of the fair

value hierarchy whereby the fair value is determined according to quoted market prices in an active market (that
are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities (Note 39).

8 REINSURANCE ASSETS

2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Reinsurance of insurance contracts 18 545,776 483,770
9 TAKAFUL PARTICIPANTS’ FUND ACCOUNTS
(a) Statement of financial position — Policyholders
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Assets
Investment properties 65,961 98,383
Furniture and equipment 2,611 1,044
Available-for-sale financial assets 65,270 28,288
Receivables from sharcholders 43,865 13,908
Insurance receivables 48,308 38,086
Reinsurance assets 57,456 13,705
Other assets 6,160 7,140
Cash and cash equivalents 8,833 4,565
298,464 205,119
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 222,034 151,813
Payables to a related party 266 604
Insurance payables 45,069 24,870
Employees' end-of-service benefits 3,777 3,393
Other liabilities 18,791 9,739
Fair value reserve 3,661 (640)
293,598 189,779
Surplus at 31 December 4,866 15,340
298,464 205,119
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

9 TAKAFUL PARTICIPANTS’ FUND ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Statement of revenues and expenses — Policyholders
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Gross contributions 248,303 202,649
Change in unearned contributions provision (20,150) (27,481)
Gross earned contributions 228,153 175,168
Contributions ceded to reinsurers (28,722) (21,243)
Net earned contributions 199,431 153,925
Fees and commission expense (11,119) (7,038)
Investment income 4,480 919
Other operating income 830 402
Total revenue 193,622 148,208
Gross claims paid (156,896) (110,319)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 3,938 3,698
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (50,072) (9,604)
Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers 37,208 34
Net claims (165,822) (116,191)
Impairment loss on receivables (1,029) -
Other expense (1,029) -
Surplus for the year before wakala fee 26,771 32,017
Wakala fee (37,245) (30,397)
(Deficit) surplus for the year (10,474) 1,620
Add: shareholders net results 37,391 12,913
Total profit for the year (shareholders and policyholders) 26,917 14,533
10 OTHER ASSETS
2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Accrued rent * 79,387 120
Advance payments against investments 84,176 63,452
Accrued interest 2,564 2,075
Prepayments and advances 3,439 3,728
Staff receivables 402 1,097
Other receivables 16,914 35,466
186,882 105,938

* Accrued rent includes an amount of QR 79.24 million (2013: Nil) which pertains to the leasing of a tower in the
Doha Corniche area.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents position for cash flow purposes, net of the Group overdraft is as follows:

2014 2013

Note QR '000 QR '000

Cash and cash equivalents 501,627 151,083
Bank overdrafts 19 1,940 3,593
503,567 154,676

12 ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized, issued and fully paid up share capital of 69,175,260 shares of QR 10 each (2013: 57,646,050 shares of
QR 10 each).

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
691,753 576,461

During the year, the Group issued 11,529,210 bonus shares of QR 10 each (2013: 7,519,050 shares of QR 10
each).

13 LEGAL RESERVE

The Qatar Commercial Companies' Law No.5 of 2002 requires that 10% of the net profit for each year should be
appropriated to a legal reserve until the balance therein equals to 50% of the paid up capital. During the year, the
Group has transferred an amount of QR 92.00 million (2013: QR 213.10 million) from retained earnings to the
legal reserve. The Group's legal reserve exceeds 50% of share capital. However, in accordance with Qatar Central
Bank's Law No. 13 of 2012 as amended, 10% of net profit is required to be transferred to legal reserve until the
legal reserve equals 100% of the paid up capital. The balance under this reserve is not available for distribution,
except in the circumstances specified in the above law and after Qatar Central Bank approval.

14 REVALUATION RESERVES

2014 2013

Notes QR '000 QR '000

Available-for-sale financial assets (a) 740,111 637,549
Revaluation surplus (b) 77,355 77,355
Cash flow hedging () (34,853) (39,129)
Foreign currency translation reserve (d) (83,694) (47,342)
698,919 628,433
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

14 REVALUATION RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(a)  Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
until the investments are derecognised or impaired. The movement in the balances is as follows:

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
At 1 January 637,549 506,979
Fair value change during the year 132,631 152,219
Transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon sale of
investments (30,069) (21,649)
At 31 December 740,111 637,549

(b) Revaluation surplus

One of the associate companies of the Group has revalued its properties and a revaluation surplus was directly
recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income of the associate. The Group has recognized its
proportionate share of the revaluation surplus amounting to QR 77.36 million in equity under the revaluation
reserve.

(¢)  Cash flow hedging

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedging related to hedge transactions that have not yet affected profit or loss.

(d) Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of investments in
foreign associates, at the closing exchange rates.

15 DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors has proposed a cash dividend of 20% of the nominal share value (QR 2.00 per share) and a
bonus share of 15% of the share capital for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: cash dividend of 15% of the
nominal share value (QR 1.50 per share) and a bonus share of 20% of the share capital were approved and paid).
The amounts are subject to the approval of the general assembly.

16  CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIAL AND SPORTS ACTIVITIES FUND

Pursuant to the Qatar Law No. 13 of 2008 and the related clarifications issued in 2012, which is applicable for all
Qatari listed shareholding companies with publicly traded shares, the Group has made an appropriation of 2.5% of
its net profit for the year resulting in a net amount of QR 5.56 million being its contribution to the social and sports
activities fund for the year 2014 (2013: QR 1.47 million).

17  NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interests relate to the subsidiaries Mozoon Real Estate Company W.L.L. and General
Company for Water and Beverages W.L.L.
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

19 BORROWINGS

2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Term loans 1,305,620 986,587
Bank overdrafts 11 (1,940) (3,593)
1,303,680 982,994
(a) Current borrowings
2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Term loans 360,205 19,602
Bank overdrafts 11 (1,940) (3,593)
358,265 16,009
(b) Non-current borrowings
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Term loans 945,415 966,985
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

21 PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd — Amman 1,949 -

Trust Re — Bahrain 148 53

Alsari Trading Company 1,263 -

3,360 53

22 INSURANCE PAYABLES

2014 2013

Note QR '000 QR '000

Due to policyholders 103,536 139,785

Due to insurers and reinsurers * 154,699 140,097

Due to agents, brokers and intermediaries 14,210 15,771

272,445 295,653

* Due to insurers and reinsurers includes amounts due to related parties as follows:

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd — Amman* 4,017 2,093

Trust Re — Bahrain (952) 8,317
Others (1,199) (829)

1,866 9,581

* Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd — Amman acts as a reinsurance administrator through

whom transactions are directed to various reinsurance service providers.

23 EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

2014 2013

QR '000 QR ‘000

At 1 January 28,908 26,875
Provided during the year 2,519 2,560
Paid during the year (3,843) (527)
At 31 December 27,584 28,908

24 OTHER LIABILITIES

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Staff payables 3,393 5,272
Accrued interest 3,132 3,210
Accrued expenses 54,744 8,751
Other payables 104,847 75,051
166,116 92,284
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

26 NET PREMIUMS

(a) Gross earned premiums

Insurance contracts
Change in unearned premiums provision

(b)  Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Insurance contracts
Change in unearned premiums provision

Net earned premiums

27 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Reinsurance commission income
Policyholders administration fees

28 INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment properties
Rental income
Available-for-sale financial assets
Dividend income
Interest income
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest income

2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
18(b) 616,454 560,255
(56,053) (42,103)
18(b) 560,401 518,152
2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
18(b) (425,706) (352,459)
63,310 40,296
18(b) (362,396) (312,163)
198,005 205,989
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
16,996 15,201
930 361
17,926 15,562
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
136,548 11,880
35,645 39,021
10,394 9,555
8,518 6,492
1,345 3,253
192,450 70,201




Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

29 NET REALISED GAINS

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Investment properties 29,275 -
Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity securities 28,110 17,540
Debt securities 1,959 4,109
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity securities 427 631
Equity accounted investees 5,210 -
64,981 22,280
30 FAIR VALUE GAINS
2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
Investment properties 5 697,807 2,001,832
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 26,466 37,452
724,273 2,039,284
31 OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Shareholder’s income from Takaful operations 12,523 9,688
Miscellaneous income 1,841 2,494
14,364 12,182
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

32 NET CLAIMS

2014 2013
Note QR '000 QR '000
(a) Gross claims paid
Gross claims paid 238,858 254,021
Claims recoveries (32,839) (22,772)
206,019 231,249
(b) Claims ceded to reinsurers
Claims ceded to reinsurers (87,989) (105,999)
(c) Gross change in insurance contract liabilities
Provision for reported claims by policyholders 13,823 26,598
Provision for claims IBNR 11,123 (3,446)
18(a) 24,946 23,152
(d) Change in insurance contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers
Provision for reported claims by policyholders 18(a) 1,304 (7,265)
Net claims 144,280 141,137
33 FINANCE COSTS
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
Interest expense 38,126 14,618
Interest on reinsurance premium reserves 241 309
38,367 14,927
Bank charges 1,501 1,959
39,868 16,886
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

34 OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee benefits expenses
Occupancy expenses

Board of Directors' remuneration
Depreciation of property and equipment
Marketing expenses

Net foreign exchange adjustments
Consultancy expenses

Travel expenses

Impairment losses (recoveries)

Other expenses

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Parent (QR '000)
Weighted average number of shares

Earnings per share (in Qatari Riyals)

36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Net change in receivables from related parties
Net change in insurance receivables
Net change in reinsurance assets

Net change in other assets

Net change in operating assets

Net change in insurance contract liabilities
Net change in payables to related parties
Net change in insurance payables

Net change in other liabilities

Net change in operating liabilities

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
82,810 72,851
5,483 3,963
5,368 5,953
4,632 4,614
4,306 2,678
4,140 53
3,315 2,608
2,158 1,127
382 (7,367)
14,121 14,656
126,715 101,136
2014 2013
919,756 2,130,433
69,175 69,175
13.30 30.80
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
(4,549) (7,765)
(34,419) (16,146)
62,006 47,561
81,446 (29,188)
104,484 (5,538)
80,999 65,255
3,307 (15)
(23,208) 68,538
68,276 (29,898)
129,374 103,880
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Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party transactions

Related parties consist of shareholders, related companies and key management personnel of the Group, and entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these
transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss were as follows:

2014 2013
The Parent Company and its subsidiaries QR '000 QR '000
Gross premiums 13,186 5,069
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (19,826) (17,077)
Gross claims paid 9,799) (397)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 2,970 3,055
Fees and commission income 1,463 1,500
Other operating and administrative expenses (1,702) (1,330)

Transactions with related parties included in the statement of revenues and expenses - Policyholders under Takaful
participants fund accounts were as follows:

2014 2013
General Takaful Company QR '000 QR '000
Contributions ceded to reinsurers (2,749) (976)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 1,243 78
Fees and commission income 470 158

Payables to related parties included in the statement of financial position - Policyholders are as follows:

2014 2013

General Takaful Company QR '000 QR '000

Insurance payables 81 99

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation of key management personnel during the year were as follows:

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Board of Directors’ remuneration 5,368 5,953

Salaries and other short-term benefits 33,809 22,316

End-of-service benefits 564 778

39,741 29,047

Related party balances

Receivables from and payables to related parties of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note
7(c) and Note 21, respectively. Insurance receivables from and payables to related parties are disclosed in Note 7(d)
and Note 22, respectively. These amounts are unsecured, interest free and settlement normally occurs in cash. There
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables.

51



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000
(a) Contingent liabilities
Letters of guarantee 10,753 11,430
(b) Lease commitments
Operating lease commitments are payable as follows:
Less than one year 1,853 1,763
Between one and five years 910 2,738
2,763 4,501
39 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2014 Notes Date of valuation QR '000 QR '000 QR'000 QR'000
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment properties 5 31 December 2014 - - 5,005,196 5,005,196
Available-for-sale 7(a) 31 December 2014 1,151,614 21,724 - 1,173,338
At fair value through profit or loss  7(b) 31 December 2014 199,396 - - 199,396
1,351,010 21,724 5,005,196 6,377,930
Liability measured at fair value:
Derivative financial instruments 20 31 December 2014 - 34,853 - 34,853
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
inactive observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2013 Notes  Date of valuation QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment properties 5 31 December 2013 - - 4,277,199 4,277,199
Available-for-sale 7(a) 31 December 2013 998,464 21,800 - 1,020,264
At fair value through profit or loss  7(b) 31 December 2013 171,623 - - 171,623
1,170,087 21,800 4,277,199 5,469,086
Liability measured at fair value:
Derivative financial instruments 20 31 December 2013 - 39,129 - 39,129

52



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

40 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group, in the normal course of business, derives its revenue mainly from assuming and managing insurance,
investments and investment properties. The Group’s lines of business are exposed to the following risks:

- Insurance risk

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk, and
- Operational risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Board of Directors approves the Group risk management policies and meets
regularly. These policies define the Group’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure
the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, align underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate
goals, and specify reporting requirements. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Group Audit and Compliance Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal
Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Insurance risk

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The insurance contracts issued by the Group for various risks are homogeneous.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur when the frequency or severity of claims
and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims
and benefits will vary from year to year from the level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability of
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in
any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of
insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Risks are accepted based on an evaluation of pricing and prior underwriting experience in accordance with
underwriting guidelines that have been laid out for each line of business. Underwriting guidelines are constantly
reviewed and updated to take account of market developments, performance and opportunities. Accumulation
limits are set to control exposures to natural hazards and catastrophes. Various underwriting and approval limits
are specified for accepting risks. The reinsurance strategy of the Group is designed to protect exposures to
individual and event risks based on current risk exposures through cost effective reinsurance arrangements. The
recoverable amounts from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision
and are in accordance with the reinsurance contracts.
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Insurance risk (continued)

Even though the Group has reinsurance arrangements, the direct obligation to its policyholders is shown as a
liability and thus to the extent the reinsurer is not able to meet its obligations under the reinsurance arrangement, a
credit exposure exists. The management ensures that the Group’s reinsurance placement is diversified within a
range of reinsurers and is not concentrated or dependent on any single reinsurer.

Frequency and severity of claims
The frequency and severity of claims can be determined after consideration of several factors as follows:

- past experience of the claims;
- economic level,

- laws and regulations; and

- public awareness

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right
not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of a
fraudulent claim. The Group has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. Insurance contracts also entitle the
Group to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

The reinsurance arrangements include proportional, non-proportional and catastrophic coverage. The effect of
such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group should not suffer major insurance losses.

The Group has specialised claims units dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding general insurance claims.
This unit investigates and adjusts all general insurance claims. The general insurance claims are reviewed
individually monthly and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, current law,
jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Group actively manages settlements of
general insurance claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all
insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, a larger element of the claims provision relates to incurred but not reported claims
(IBNR) which are settled over a short to medium term period.

There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly
relate to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk
management procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary awards granted for
the loss suffered by the policyholders or third parties (for third party liability covers).

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation values and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The liability for these
contracts comprise a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims not yet paid and a provision for
unexpired risks as at the consolidated statement of financial position date.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group’s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year in relation to such claims) and an
estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined formula where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes. An actuarial valuation is done every subsequent year to ensure the
adequacy of the reserves.

54



Qatar General Insurance and Reinsurance Company S.A.Q.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

40 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Insurance risk (continued)

Claims development

The Group maintains strong reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of claim payments are
generally resolved within one year (Note 18).

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with these insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The exposure of the Group to claims associated with general
insurance is material. This exposure is concentrated in Qatar where significant transactions take place.

The Group uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and actuarial reports to measure its general insurance
related claims liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly from the Group’s monthly claims reports and screening of
the actual insurance contracts carried out at year end to derive data for the contracts held. The Group has reviewed
the individual contracts and their actual exposure to claims. This information is used to develop scenarios related
to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The table below sets out the concentration of outstanding claims provision by type of contract:

2014 2013
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves  reserves
QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
Motor 113,674 (7,776) 105,898 94,518 (9,247) 85,271
Non-Motor 368,019 (335,590) 32,429 362,229 (335,423) 26,806
481,693 (343,366) 138,327 456,747 (344,670) 112,077

Sensitivity analysis
The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by an analysis of sensitivity around several scenarios.
The sensitivity of the Group’s income to insurance risks is as follows:

2014 2013
Change in Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
assumptions net profit equity net profit equity
QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
. +5% (9,900) (9,900) (10,299) (10,299)
Loss ratio -5% 9,900 9,900 10,299 10,299

The sensitivity to a 5% increase/decrease in gross loss ratios is the same both net and gross of reinsurance as this
increase does not result in any material excess of loss reinsurance limits being reached.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation.

Reinsurance arrangements are effected with reinsurers whose creditworthiness is assessed on the basis of
satisfying minimum rating and financial strength criteria. Reinsurance is made with different reinsurance
companies in order to reduce the risk of concentration.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the
consolidated statement of financial position date.
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Credit risk (continued)

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this
information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group's policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

The Group's management considers that all the financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting
dates under review are of good credit quality. In respect of insurance and other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any company of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000

Credit risk exposure by financial asset type:
Available-for-sale financial assets (debt securities) 192,422 148,112
Insurance receivables 198,331 228,843
Reinsurance recoverable on outstanding claims 306,507 319,226
Cash and cash equivalents 501,392 150,582
Total credit risk exposure 1,198,652 846,763

Impaired financial assets

As at 31 December 2014, the impaired insurance and reinsurance assets amount to QR 37.15 million (2013:
QR 41.05 million) and other assets amount to QR 9.03 million (2013: QR 4.74 million). The Group records all
impairment allowances in separate impairment allowances accounts.

A reconciliation of all the allowances for impairment losses are as follows:

2014 2013 2014 2013
Impairment on insurance Impairment on other
and reinsurance assets receivables

QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000

At 1 January 41,053 49,156 4,738 4,002
Charge for the year 1,691 20,091 4,290 736
Reversals (5,599) (28,194) - -
At 31 December 37,145 41,053 9,028 4,738

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due. The Group manages its
liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled payments for financial liabilities as well as cash-outflows due
in day-to-day business.

The Group maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 90-day periods.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to sell medium to long-term financial assets.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of the Group’s liabilities as at 31 December 2014 are summarised below:

Current Non-current
More Total
Within 6 6to 12 Total 1to5 than 5 non-
months months  current years years current Total
QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000
Insurance payables and other
liabilities 326,806 42,967 369,773 63,299 5,489 68,788 438,561
Derivative financial
instruments - interest rate swap - 34,853 34,853 - - - 34,853
Insurance contract liabilities 249,261 212,333 461,594 297,324 10,403 307,727 769,321
Payables to related parties - 2,097 2,097 - 1,263 1,263 3,360
Borrowings 340,824 37,752 378,576 918,774 63,642 982,416 1,360,992
916,891 330,002 1,246,893 1,279,397 80,797 1,360,194 2,607,087
This compares to the maturity of the Group's financial liabilities as at 31 December 2013:
Current Non-current
More Total
Within 6 6to 12 Total Ito5 than 5 non-
months months current years years current Total
QR'000  QR'000 QR'000 QR'000 QR'000  QR'000 QR '000
Insurance payables and other
liabilities 143,208 76,387 219,595 168,342 - 168,342 387,937
Derivative financial
instruments - interest rate swap - 39,129 39,129 - - - 39,129
Insurance contract liabilities 223,017 189,977 412,994 266,020 9,308 275,328 688,322
Payables to a related party - 53 53 - - - 53
Borrowings 1,647 27,803 29,450 869,315 164,594 1,033,909 1,063,359
367,872 333349 701,221 1,303,677 173,902 1,477,579 2,178,800

The above contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising

the return.

Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Qatari Riyals. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from
the Group's overseas investments. The Qatari Riyal is effectively pegged to the United States Dollar and thus
currency risk occurs only in respect of currencies other than the United States Dollar.
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Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Qatari Riyals at the closing rate, are
as follows:

2014 2013

Nominal amounts Euro Other Euro Other

QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
Financial assets 1,283 42,321 1,096 42,359
Short-term exposure 1,283 42,321 1,096 42,359
Financial assets 7,532 - 8,639 -
Financial liabilities (8,460) - (9,598) -
Long-term exposure (928) - (959) -

The impact that exchange rates fluctuations would have on the Group’s net results is considered to be not
significant. The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on profit and equity due to changes in the fair value of currency
sensitive monetary assets and liabilities including insurance contract claim liabilities.

2014 2013

Changes in Impacton Impacton Impact on Impact on

variables profit equity profit equity

QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000

Currency

EUR +10% (718) 753 (850) 864
Others +10% 16 4,216 331 3,905
Total (702) 4,969 (519) 4,769
EUR -10% 718 (753) 850 (864)
Others -10% (16) (4,216) (331 (3,905)
Total 702 (4,969) 519 (4,769)

Interest rate risk
The Group's policy is to minimise interest rate risk exposures on term financing. The Group is exposed to changes
in the market interest rates through its financial assets and liabilities which are subject to variable interest rates.

Carrying amounts

2014 2013
QR '000 QR '000

Fixed and variable rate instruments
Financial assets 704,876 320,861
Financial liabilities 1,338,533 1,022,123

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and the Group
does not designate interest rate swaps as hedging instruments under the fair value hedge accounting model.
Therefore a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
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Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 50 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by
the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,

remain constant.

Profit or loss

50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
QR '000 QR '000
31 December 2014
Variable rate instruments (6,528) 6,528
Interest rate swap 2,635 (2,635)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (3,893) 3,893
31 December 2013
Variable rate instruments (4,933) 4,933
Interest rate swap 2,281 (2,281)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (2,652) 2,652

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to other market price risk in respect of its listed equity securities and bonds. Equity price
risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity and the value
of individual stocks. The effect on equity due to a reasonably possible change in equity indices by (+/-) 10%, with
all other variables held constant is as follows:

2014 2013
Impact on other Impact on other
Changes in Impacton  comprehensive Impact on comprehensive
variables profit income profit income
QR '000 QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
Qatar Market +10% 19,688 82,595 16,874 79,792
International Markets +10% 252 5,024 288 22,527
Qatar Market -10% (19,688) (82,595) (16,874) (79,792)
International Markets -10% (252) (5,024) (288) (22,527)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems and control failures, fraud and human errors, which can
result in financial and reputation loss, and legal and regulatory consequences. The Group manages operational
risk through appropriate controls, instituting segregation of duties and internal checks and balances, including
internal audit and compliance.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which
the Group defines as net operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Group’s objectives when
managing capital is:
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Market risk (continued)

Capital management (continued)
- To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
- To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance and investment contracts
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s goal in capital management
is to maintain a capital-to-overall financing structure ratio of 1:1.5. Capital for the reporting periods under review
is summarized as follows:

2014 2013

QR '000 QR '000

Equity excluding cash flow hedging reserve 5,712,768 4,818,559
Less: cash and cash equivalents (501,627) (151,083)
Capital 5,211,141 4,667,476
Equity 5,677,915 4,779,430
Add: borrowings 1,303,680 982,994
Overall financing 6,981,595 5,762,424
Capital to overall financing 1:1.34 1:1.23

41 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made use of a number of
judgments relating to the application of accounting policies which are described in Note 2. Those which have the
most significant effect on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense are listed below (apart
from those involving estimations which are dealt with in Note 42).

These judgments are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the following discussion
addresses the accounting policies that require judgments.

Classification of investments

Quoted securities could be classified either as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss. The Group
invests substantially in quoted securities either locally or overseas and management has primarily decided to
account for these investments based on their potential for long term growth rather than on the short term profit
basis. Consequently, the majority of such investments are recognized as available-for-sale rather than at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss where the assets are either
held for trading or initially designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group determines that available-for-sale financial assets are impaired when there has been a ‘significant’ or
‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value below its cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’
requires judgment and is assessed based on qualitative and quantitative factors, for each available-for-sale
financial asset separately. In making a judgment on impairment, the Group evaluates among other factors,
evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the entity, impact of delay in execution, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.
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42 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES AND UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the consolidated
statement of financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Claims made under insurance contracts

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred based
on the estimated liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to
the Group and management estimations for the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). The method for making
such estimates and for establishing the resulting liability is continually reviewed. Any difference between the
actual claims and the provisions made are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of
settlement.

Unearned premiums

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable that relates to
risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognised when contracts are entered into
and premiums are charged, and is brought to account as premium income over the term of the contract in
accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the contract. Unearned premiums are calculated
on a daily pro rata basis.

Impairment of insurance and other receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of insurance and other receivables is made when collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. The determination of whether insurance and other receivables are impaired,
involves the Group evaluating, the credit and liquidity position of the policyholders and the insurance companies,
historical recovery rates including detailed investigations carried out during 2014 and feedback received from the
legal department. The difference between the estimated collectible amount and the book amount is recognized as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any difference between the amounts actually collected
in future periods and the amounts expected will be recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss at the
time of collection.

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation charges of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and related depreciation charges
of its property and equipment. These estimates are determined after considering the expected usage of the asset,
physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence.

Liability adequacy test

At each consolidated statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of insurance contract liabilities. The Group makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing
such liabilities in evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Interest rate swap valuation

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by
discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market
interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instruments
and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group and counterparty when appropriate.

Investment property valuation

The fair value of investment property is determined by independent real estate valuation experts with recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued. The fair values are based on market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein parties had each acted
knowledgeably.
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43 RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year’s
consolidated financial statements. However, such reclassifications did not have any effect on the net profit and

equity of the comparative year.

The reclassifications are summarised below:

Reclassified Previous Amount of the

31 December 2013 31 December 2013 reclassification

QR '000 QR '000 QR '000
Other assets 105,938 118,113 (12,175)
Other liabilities (92,284) (104,459) 12,175

62



	Pages 1 to 4
	Pages 5 to 63

